
 

Page 1 

 

 
AGENDA  
 
Meeting: Electoral Review Committee 

Place: Kennet Room - County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, BA14 8JN 

Date: Thursday 30 January 2020 

Time: 12.30 pm 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Kieran Elliott, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 718504 or email 
kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 
 

Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling 
Cllr Clare Cape 
Cllr Richard Clewer (Chairman) 
Cllr Gavin Grant (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr Ian McLennan 

Cllr Christopher Newbury 
Cllr Ashley O'Neill 
Cllr Jonathon Seed 
Cllr Stuart Wheeler 
Cllr Graham Wright 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 

Cllr Peter Fuller 
Cllr Ruth Hopkinson 
Cllr Nick Murry 

 

 

Cllr Jacqui Lay 
Cllr Ricky Rogers 
Cllr Ian Thorn 

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


 

Page 2 

 

Recording and Broadcasting Information 
 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 

Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv.  At the start of the meeting, the 

Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 

sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council. 

 

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 

those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes. 

 

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public. 

  

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 

Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 

from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 

accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 

relation to any such claims or liabilities. 

 

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here .   
 

Parking 
 

To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most 
meetings will be held are as follows: 
 
County Hall, Trowbridge 
Bourne Hill, Salisbury 
Monkton Park, Chippenham 
 
County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for 
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your 
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more 
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer, 
who will arrange for your stay to be extended. 
 

Public Participation 
 

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of 
questions and statements for this meeting. 
 
For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and 
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution. 
 
The full constitution can be found at this link.  
 
For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for 

details 

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=14031
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/parkingtransportandstreets/carparking/findacarpark.htm?area=Trowbridge
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/documents/s153103/Part04RulesofProcedure.pdf
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13386&path=0


 

Page 3 

 

AGENDA 

                                                      Part I  

 Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public 

1   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting. 

2   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 8) 

 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 31 October 2019. 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee. 

4   Chairman's Announcements  

 To reecive any announcements through the Chair. 

5   Public Participation  

 Statements 
If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this 
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 
3speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item. 
 
Please contact the officer named on the front of the agenda for any further 
clarification. 
 
Questions 
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council 
received in accordance with the constitution. 
 
Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such 
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than 
5pm on 23 January 2020 in order to be guaranteed of a written response. In 
order to receive a verbal response questions must be submitted no later than 
5pm on 27 January 2020. Please contact the officer named on the front of this 
agenda for further advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the 
Chairman decides that the matter is urgent. 
 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 

6   Update on Stage One and Stage Two of the Community Governance 
Review 2019/20  

 To receive an update on progression of the Community Governance Review.  



 

Page 4 

 

7   Preparations for Stage Three and Four of the Community Governance 
Review 2019/20  

 To discuss the next stages of the Community Governance Review. To include 
discussion of number and date of Full Council meetings to consider 
recommendations from the Committee. 

8  Urgent Items  

 Any other items of business which the Chairman agrees to consider as a matter 
of urgency. 

 Part II  

 Items during consideration of which it is recommended that the public should be 
excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed. 



 
 
 

 
 
Electoral Review Committee 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE ELECTORAL REVIEW COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 31 
OCTOBER 2019 AT KENNET ROOM - COUNTY HALL, BYTHESEA ROAD, 
TROWBRIDGE, BA14 8JN. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Ian Blair-Pilling, Cllr Clare Cape, Cllr Richard Clewer (Chairman), 
Cllr Gavin Grant (Vice-Chairman), Cllr Ian McLennan, Cllr Jonathon Seed, 
Cllr Stuart Wheeler and Cllr Graham Wright 
  

 
18 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from Councillors Christopher Newbury and Ashley 
O’Neill. 
 
 

19 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 21 October 2019 were presented for 
consideration and it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve and sign the minutes as a true and correct record. 
 
 

20 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations. 
 
 

21 Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no announcements. 
 
 

22 Public Participation 
 
No statements or questions were submitted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 

 
 
 

23 Community Governance Reviews 
 
The Committee received a report setting out details of a proposed Community 
Governance Review, a process to alter the governance arrangements of 
parishes within the Wiltshire Council area. Following a request by the 
Committee to parish concils for expressions of interest, 79 requests had been 
received. The Committee had considered these at a workshop, and terms of 
reference for a review prepared setting out proposed areas and a proposed 
timetable for the review. 
 
Bearing in mind the length of time needed to complete a review in advance of 
the May 2021 elections, resource requirements and the complexity of schemes 
requested, not all areas requested could be reviewed during the upcoming 
review. The Committee agreed to focus on areas on the edge of market downs 
impacted by the final recommendations of the Local Government Boundary 
Commission for England in their Electoral Review of Wiltshire Council, as well 
as a petition for a new parish which they were required to review, and requested 
areas relating to Wilcot Parish, where a potential anomaly in its status had been 
identified. 
 
The Committee discussed the terms of reference and agreed to amend the 
period of information gathering to allow for deeper consultation on specific 
schemes ahead of the formulation of draft recommendations. It was stated 
unitary members and parishes would be contacted for further information in 
November and December 2019, and that there may be public sessions if 
appropriate in 2020 for some areas. It was also considered that for a parish 
merger proposal, residents in both parishes should be contacted for their views. 
 
It was also agreed that proposals to change the names of parishes would be 
dealt with under the processes of S75 of the Local Government Act 1972 at an 
appropriate time. 
 
At the conclusion of discussion, it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the Terms of Reference for a Community Governance Review 

as detailed at Appendix B as amended, to formally commence on 1 

November 2019. 

 

To agree to progress Scheme 12 (Cheverell Parva), Scheme 27 (Fittleton) 

and Scheme 36 (Wilcot) and Scheme 72 (Fyfield and West Overton JPC) in 

respect of changing the names of the parishes in question, under S75 of 

the Local Government Act 1972 at an appropriate time. 

 

24 Date of the Next Meeting 
 
Additional dates would be circualted to the Committee. 
 

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

25 Urgent Items 
 
The Committee noted the upcoming Polling District and Polling Place Review 
recommendations to Full Council on 26 November 2019, and whether the 
announcement of a General Election for 12 December 2019 would impact this. 
It was stated in response that owing to the nature of the recommendations not 
to adjust polling districts, and make minimal changes to polling stations, the 
recommendations could proceed, and that for a General Election at short notice 
many alternative venues might need to be used in any case.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(Duration of meeting:  12.30  - 1.00 pm) 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Kieran Elliott of Democratic Services, 
direct line 01225 718504, e-mail kieran.elliott@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



REVIEWS OF PARISHES AND RELATED MATTERS – LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007 

 

 

Community Governance Reviews 2019-2020  

Terms of Reference 

Introduction 

On behalf of Wiltshire Council (“The Council”) and under authority delegated by Full 

Council on 9 July 2019, the Electoral Review Committee (“The Committee”) at its 

meeting on 31 October 2019 resolved to undertake a series of Community 

Governance Reviews (“The Reviews”), in respect of the areas and within the scope 

listed below.  

Description The Reviews to cover 

Salisbury and 
Netherhampton 

Internal and external boundaries of the Parish of 
Salisbury and neighbouring parishes as listed and 
associated warding and other arrangements in 
respect of the areas impacted by the LGBCE final 
recommendations for the unitary divisions Wilton 
and Salisbury Harnham West. 
 

Trowbridge, Hilperton, North 
Bradley, West Ashton and 
Southwick  

Internal and external boundaries of the Parish of 
Trowbridge and neighbouring parishes as listed and 
associated warding and other arrangements in 
respect of the areas impacted by the LGBCE final 
recommendations for the unitary divisions 
Southwick, Trowbridge Drynham and Trowbridge 
Park, and other areas within the parishes of 
Hilperton, West Ashton, Southwick, North Bradley 
adjoining the parish of Trowbridge and areas of 
Trowbridge adjoining the parishes of West Ashton 
and Southwick. 
 

Chippenham, Lacock, 
Chippenham Without, 
Kington St Michael and 
Langley Burrell Without 

Internal and external boundaries of the Parish of 
Chippenham and neighbouring parishes as listed 
and associated warding and other arrangements in 
respect of the areas impacted by the LGBCE final 
recommendations for the unitary divisions 
Chippenham Lowden and Rowden, Corsham 
Without, Chippenham Hardenhuish, Kington and 
Chippenham Monkton, and other areas within the 
parish of Chippenham Without adjoining the parish 
of Chippenham and areas within the parish of 
Kington St Michael adjoining Chippenham Without. 
 

Melksham, Melksham 
Without and Seend 

Internal and external boundaries of the Parish of 
Melksham and neighbouring parishes as listed and 
associated warding and other arrangements in 
respect of the areas impacted by the LGBCE final 
recommendations for the unitary divisions Melksham 
South, Bowerhill and Melksham East, and other 
areas within the parish of Seend adjoining the parish 

Page 5

Minute Item 23

Page 9



REVIEWS OF PARISHES AND RELATED MATTERS – LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007 

 

 

of Melksham Without, and areas of housing 
development within Melksham Without adjoining the 
parish of Melksham. 
 
Consideration of a proposal for amalgamation of the 
parishes of Melksham and Melksham Without, 
potentially to include establishment of a new parish 
of Shaw and Whitley. 
 

Derry Hill and Studley, Calne 
Without  

To consider possible establishment of a new parish 
at Derry Hill and Studley, including name, style, 
warding, councillor numbers and any other 
arrangements, and warding, councillor number and 
other internal arrangements in relation to Calne 
Without irrespective of potential establishment of a 
new parish. 

Wilcot (and Huish), Pewsey, 
Woodborough and 
Manningford 

Internal and External boundaries of Wilcot, Huish, 
Pewsey, Woodborough and Manningford parishes 
and associated warding and other arrangements. 
 
To include consideration of merger or grouping 
arrangements of Wilcot and Huish parishes. 

 

The Reviews may also consider any other issues within the areas under review that 

fall within the scope of sections 87-92 of the Local Government and Public 

Involvement in Health Act 2007 

The Reviews above in some cases may require consent being granted by the Local 

Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) for any internal or external 

changes as a result of the recent Electoral Review of Wiltshire Council and 

consequential changes made to parish warding arrangements. For the avoidance of 

doubt, any review areas may include consulting on and recommending to the 

LGBCE consequential changes to Unitary Divisions if appropriate. 

This Review is being carried out by the Council under the powers in Part 4 of the 

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (‘the Act’) and will be 

undertaken in accordance with the legislative requirements of that Act and any 

relevant regulations made thereunder. It will also have regard to the Guidance on 

Community Governance Reviews published by the Department of Communities and 

Local Government (DCLG, now the MHCLG). 

What is a Community Governance Reviews? 

A Community Governance Review (CGR)is a review of the whole or part of the 

Council’s area to consider one of more of the following: 

 Creating, merging, altering or abolishing parishes 

 The naming of parishes and styles of new parishes 

 The electoral arrangements of parishes (including the number of councillors to 

be elected to the council and parish warding) 

Page 6Page 10



REVIEWS OF PARISHES AND RELATED MATTERS – LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007 

 

 

 Grouping or de-grouping parishes 

The Council is required to ensure that community governance within the area under 

review will be: 

 Reflective of the identities and interests of the community in that area; and 

 Is effective and convenient 

In doing so, the community governance review is required to take into account: 

 The impact of community governance arrangements on community cohesion; 

and 

 The size, population and boundaries or a local community or parish 

Why undertake a Community Governance Review? 

The Council is undertaking this Review: 

 Following the publication of Final Recommendations by the LGBCE for the 

Electoral Review of Wiltshire Council. 

 Changes to natural settlements caused by new and forthcoming 

development.  

 The Review in respect of Derry Hill and Studley, Calne Without is the result of 

a petition signed by the requisite number of local government electors for the 

area.  

 The Review in respect of Wilcot is the result of anomalies relating to the 

status of the parish which must be resolved in advance of the next election. 

Who will undertake the Review? 

The Council has appointed an Electoral Review Committee to carry out all aspects of 

the Reviews and to make recommendations to the Council in due course. The 

Committee comprises a politically balanced membership of ten Members. Other 

Members and the public may attend the formal committee meetings. The relevant 

section of the Committee’s terms of reference are set out in Part 3B Paragraph 2.10 

of the Constitution as follows: 

2.10.7 To oversee any community governance reviews within the Wiltshire Council 
area, including contacting all parishes for proposals, setting the scope for 
any review, its methodology, and its timescales. The Committee will 
prepare final recommendations for any changes for consideration by Full 
Council. 
 

2.10.8 The Committee will consider whether it is appropriate to make, and is 
empowered to suggest for consultation and recommendation, changes to 
parish areas and parish electoral arrangements, to include: 
 

 The alteration, merging, creation or abolition of parishes; 

 The naming of parishes and adoption of alternative styles for new parishes; 

Page 7Page 11



REVIEWS OF PARISHES AND RELATED MATTERS – LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007 

 

 

 Parish council size, number of councillors to be elected, and warding 
arrangements; 

 Any other electorate arrangements. 
 

2.10.9 Where it would be appropriate to do so the Committee may recommend 
that as a result of proposed parish changes a unitary division be amended 
so that it remains coterminous with that parish. Any such change would 
need to be agreed by the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England if approved by Full Council. 

 

As the relevant principal authority, Wiltshire Council is responsible for conducting 
any Community Governance Review within its electoral area. The Electoral Review 
Committee will oversee the review and produce draft and final recommendations; 
Full Council will approve the final recommendations before a Community 
Governance Order (Order) is made. 
 
Consultation 
 
The Council is required to consult the local government electors for the area under 
review and any other person or body who appears to have an interest in the review 
and to take the representations that are received into account. The Council will also 
identify any other person or body who it feels may have an interest in the review and 
invite them to submit their views at all stages of the consultation. 
 
Before making any recommendations or publishing final proposals, an appropriate 
consultation process will form part of the review to take full account of the views of 
local people and other stakeholders. The Council will comply with the statutory 
consultative requirements by: 
 

 consulting local government electors for the area under review; 

 consulting any other person or body (including a local authority) which 
appears to the Council to have an interest in the review; and 

 taking into account any representations received in connection with the 
review. 
 

The Council will publicise the review by on its website and with information available 
at the Council Offices.  
 
The methods of consultation will be those deemed appropriate for the proposals 
concerned. Additionally, there will be a webpage created for the review containing all 
relevant information, a briefing note sent to all town and parish councils and area 
boards and press releases will be sent out at appropriate stages. 
 
Timetable 
 
Following the receipt of the Petition for a new parish on the 26 September 2019, the 
completion of that review will be completed within 12 months of the date on which the 
valid petition was received.  
 

Page 8Page 12



REVIEWS OF PARISHES AND RELATED MATTERS – LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007 

 

 

An indicative timetable for the Review is as listed below. This is subject to variation 
by the Committee as appropriate, within the overall prescribed time limit. In 
particular, the Committee may vary the timetable to take account of any additional 
consultations that it deems appropriate. 
 

Stage Action Dates 

Pre-consultation Liaising with parish councils on suggested 
areas for consideration for review and 
receipt of initial submissions. 

12 July 2019 – 30 
September 2019 

Stage one 
 

Commencement of CGR - Terms of 
Reference published  
 

1 November 2019 

Schemes uploaded to public portal for any 
initial comments, to be updated with any 
relevant additional information. To include 
any further schemes received which fall 
within the scope of the Review  

1 November 2019 
– 30 November 
2019 

Stage two Consideration of submissions received in 
relation to proposed schemes. Local 
briefings and meetings as appropriate with 
unitary councillors and/or parish 
representatives.  

Scheme consultation 
Draft recommendations prepared. 

1 December 2019 
– 21 February 
2020 
 
 
1 January 2020-
21 February 

Stage three Draft recommendations published  Mid-Late March 
2020 

Draft recommendations consulted upon Mid-late March 
2020 – 30 April 
2020 

Stage four Consideration of submissions received. 
Final recommendations prepared 

1 May – 24 June 
2020 

Decision Recommendations submitted to Full Council 
for approval 

Circa Late July 
2020 – 
September 2020 

 
Electorate Forecasts 
Existing parish ward electorate figures will be calculated from the October 2019 
electoral register. 
 
When the Council comes to consider electoral arrangements for the parish councils 
in its area, it is required to consider any change in the number or distribution of 
electors which is likely to occur in the period of five years beginning with the day 
when the Review starts. 
 
Electorate forecasts have been prepared using information provided to the LGBCE 
for the Unitary Boundary Review which projects electorate to March 2024. 
 
Consequential Matters 

Page 9Page 13



REVIEWS OF PARISHES AND RELATED MATTERS – LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC 

INVOLVEMENT IN HEALTH ACT 2007 

 

 

When all the required consultation has been undertaken and the review completed 
the Council may make an Order to bring into effect any decision that it may make. If 
the Council decides to take no action then it will not be necessary to make an Order. 
If an Order is made it may be necessary to cover certain consequential matters in 
that Order. These may include: 
(a) the transfer and management or custody of any property 
(b) the setting of a precept (council tax levy) for the new parish council 
(c) provision with respect to the transfer of any functions, property, rights and 
liabilities 
(d) Provision for the transfer of staff, compensation for loss of office, pensions and 
other staffing matters. 
The Council will also take into account the requirements of the Local Government 
Finance (New Parishes) Regulations 2008 when calculating the budget requirement 
of any new parish councils when setting the council tax levy to be charged. 
 
Representations 
Wiltshire Council welcomes representations during the specified consultation stages 
as set out in the timetable from any person or body who may wish to comment or 
make proposals on any aspect of the matters included within the Review. 
 
Representations may be made in the following ways: 

 Online: Insert web link 

 By Email: committee@wiltshire.gov.uk. 

 By post: Community Governance Review, County Hall, Trowbridge, BA14 8JN 
 
 
 

Date of Publication of Terms of Reference: 1 November 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10Page 14

mailto:committee@wiltshire.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes
	23 Community Governance Reviews


